

Australian Government

Department of Health and Aged Care

# HCP REPORTING IN THE HEALTH DATA PORTAL

24 MARCH 2024

[Blank Page]

### Contents

About This Guide	5
Version History	6
Introduction to the HCP Report	7
HCP Submission Workflow	8
HCP Submission Automated Data Validation Submit your HCP Report (Direct Load) Overview Submit your HCP Report (Direct Load) Submit your HCP Report (Manual Process)	<b>9</b> 10 10 16
Retrieve your HCP Submission (Submission Uploader)	20
Review your HCP Submission (Submission Reviewer)	21
Amend your HCP Submission (Submission Uploader)	24
Approve your HCP Submission (Submission Approver)	27
Process a HCP Submission (Health and Aged Care) Step 1 – Review the HCP Submission Step 2 – Process the HCP Submission	<b>29</b> 29 29
<ul> <li>Exception Reporting</li> <li>Step 1 – Set the Submission Status to <i>Ready for Processing (Health and Aged Care)</i></li> <li>Step 2 – Add Comments to the HCP Form and Return it to the Health Service for Amendm (Health and Aged Care)</li> <li>Step 3 – Amend your HCP Submission based on Health feedback (Submission Uploader)</li> <li>Step 4 – Review your HCP submission based on Health feedback (Submission Reviewer)</li> <li>Step 5 – Approve your HCP Submission based on Health feedback (Submission Approver)</li> </ul>	<b>30</b> 30 ent 30 31 34 ) 37
Indigenous Health Interim Processing Workflow	39
Interim Processing of a HCP Submission Step 1 - Initiate Interim Processing (Submission Reviewer) Step 2 – Review the Submission (Health and Aged Care) Step 3 – Process the Submission (Health and Aged Care) Step 4 – Conduct a Final Review of the Submission (Submission Reviewer) Step 5 – Approve your HCP Submission (Submission Approved)	<b>40</b> 40 41 41 42 43
Work with Comments Respond to a data validation flag in your form Add a new "internal comment" for use within your Health Service Mark an Internal Comment as Complete Link a Comment to Particular Cells in an Indicator/Tab	<b>45</b> 46 48 49

HCP reporting in the Health Data Portal	About This Guide	
View Completed Comments and Conversations	50	)
Download your HCP Submission's Data Validation H	listory 51	I
Print or PDF your HCP Form	53	3

### **About This Guide**

The *HCP Reporting in the Health Data Portal for Health Services* user guide has been developed to assist health service users with performing their required tasks within the Health Data Portal (the Data Portal) as part of the HCP reporting process, conducted each July.

This user guide contains step-by-step instructions and other important information for health service end users.

Health service end users will perform the following functions in the Data Portal:

- Create/update HCP submissions and send them on to the next stage of the submission process
- Review HCP submissions
- Amend HCP submissions
- Approve HCP submissions
- Amend HCP submissions as part of exception reporting
- Participate in Interim Processing for HCP submissions
- Extract data validation issue history details from HCP submissions as needed

### **Version History**

This section details the different versions of this user guide and what they contain, allowing you to decide if/when you need to download an updated version of the guide for your use.

Version Number	Date	Change
1.0	24 March 2024	Original version

### **Introduction to the HCP Report**

The Health Care Provider (HCP) report is submitted through the Health Data Portal every July by health services who sit under the 19(2) direction. A 19(2) exemption enables eligible health services and practitioners at approved sites to bulk bill the MBS for eligible services.

Submission Date	ta   Health Care Provider 📭	RAINING ENVIR	ONMENT		📮 =
Please ensure each of you be a letter). If your provide	ur provider numbers meet the following forr r number doesn't have 8 characters, pleas	nat: 1234567a (first six characters must e just respond to the flag that displays e	be numbers, the seventh chara xplaining this.	acter can be a l	etter or a number and the 8th character must
Note: If there are issues w option to see if this resolve	vith the data in your HCP form (i.e. there ar as the issues.	e error messages in the Notifications Tra	ay) you can select the Bulk Up	date menu and	then select Apply Common Name Fix-Ups
		Bulk Upd	ate: Please select 💌	+ Add	
Provider Number	Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Bulk Select	
2988613W	Armstrong	Brian	• Yes 📃 No		
2988613A	Du	Mei	• Yes No		
2988613B	Atwater	Holly	• Yes No		
2988613C	Shaw	Noah	• Yes No		
2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder	• Yes No		
2988613E	Jain	Anantha	• Yes No		
2988613F	Bannerman	Dana	• Yes 📃 No		

The Health Data Portal HCP form contains the following information for each health service:

- **Provider number** Provider numbers are stored in your CIS, so should be transferred to your HCP form as part of the direct load process. Your provider numbers should follow the format **1234567a** (the first six characters must be numbers while the seventh character can be a letter or a number, and the 8th character must be a letter).
- **Provider name** Each provider's first and last name will be transferred as part of the Direct Load process from your CIS.
- **Salaried information** The salaried information is not carried by your CIS, so you will need to manually specify whether or not each provider is paid by your health service.

### **HCP Submission Workflow**



## **HCP Submission**

At the commencement of a HCP reporting round each July, health services required to report on their HCP data will be notified via email the reporting round has commenced.

Each health service will then need to report on their HCP data each July through the Health Data Portal. Depending on the Clinical Information System (CIS) they use to record their data, the health service can submit their submission in the Data Portal using either of the following two methods:

- **Direct Load** an automatic data transfer from the health service's CIS to the Data Portal. The CIS' capable of facilitating the direct load of data into the Data Portal are *Communicare*, *MMEx*, *Medical Director* and *Best Practice*.
- **Manual Submission** the health service will need to manually create the HCP submission in the Data Portal and enter their aggregated clinical data into a blank form within this submission.

### Automated Data Validation

As part of the creation and submission of HCP submissions in the Data Portal, there will be automatic data validation rules run over the data that is either submitted as part of the direct load process or manually entered in the applicable form by the *Submission Uploader* within the health service.

#### Data Validation for Direct Load HCP submissions

For HCP submissions that have been automatically created in the Data Portal via the *direct load* process, if there are any issues identified with the data because of data validation, these issues will be outlined in the email all users with the *Submission Uploader* role within the health service will receive when the data is transferred to the Data Portal.

The detail regarding the issues will also be inserted into the HCP form in the Data Portal as a data validation error message that appears in the form's Notifications Tray. The *Submission Uploader* can then amend the values in the form as part of updating the submission and submitting it to the next stage of the submission workflow.

For more information, see the <u>Submit your HCP Report (Direct Load)</u> section later in this guide.

#### **Data Validation for Manual HCP Submissions**

For HCP submissions created in the Data Portal through the manual submission process, users will be notified of issues with their data as they enter the data into the form they create as part of the submission process.

If there are issues with the data, the Submission Uploader will be notified when they select

Save at the bottom of the form. The *Uploader* can then amend the values as required as they complete the form.

For more information, see <u>Submit your HCP Report (Manual Process)</u> later in this guide.

### **Rerunning Data Validation**

It is important to note the automated data validation process will occur whenever a change is made to data in the HCP form, and the change saved, at any stage of the submission workflow. For example, if a submission is returned to the *Submission Uploader* for amendment after being reviewed and the *Submission Uploader* changes a value in the form, data validation will run

again when the *Submission Uploader* selects at the bottom of the form. If there is an issue with the new value that has been entered, this will be identified as per the normal data validation rules described earlier in this section of the guide.

### Submit your HCP Report (Direct Load) Overview

Eligible health services whose CIS' (*Best Practice, Communicare, Medical Director* and *MMEx*) allow them to, will produce and review the required report in their CIS and then transfer this report (containing aggregated HCP data) directly to the Health Data Portal as an XML file. This is known as *direct load* and automatically creates a draft HCP submission in the Data Portal.

If there are any issues with the data at the time of the *direct load*, all *Submission Uploaders* within the health service will receive an email informing them of these issues. A health service *Submission Uploader* can then log in to the Data Portal and address the data validation issues in the submission that has been created as part of the *direct load* process, before submitting it for review and/or approval as needed.

### Submit your HCP Report (Direct Load)

Eligible IAHP funded health services will need to provide their Health Care Provider information to the Department of Health and Aged Care, through the Data Portal, every 12 months (*in July*).

The following procedure is used to submit your HCP report in the Data Portal, and address data validation issues within the submission, using the *direct load* process.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports you are expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

New Manage Reporting Dashboard RAINING	ENVIRONMENT		0
eporting Dashboard OSR 21 June 2023 Reporting Round		•	OSR Reporting Round Status: Open Start Date: 21/Jun/2023 End Date: 22/Jun/2023
O Due 1 Day O Not Started			nKPI Reporting Round Status: Open Start Date: 21/Jun/2023 End Date: 22/Jun/2023
KPI     21 June 2023 Reporting Round       Due 1 Day     Image: Not Started			HCP Reporting Round Status: Open Start Date: 21/Jun/2023 End Date: 22/Jun/2023
HCP 21 June 2023 Reporting Round O Due 1 Day O Draft Submission Submission			Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 01/Jun/2023 End Date: 31/Jul/2023
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Queensland Aboriginal and Islander Health Council (QAIHC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	Ves No		
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	Yes No		

1. To review/update the HCP submission that has automatically been created in the Data Portal (currently with the status of *Draft Submission*) as part of the *direct load* process, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting

Dashboard and select 🦳

## Your HCP form will display, containing the data uploaded to the Data Portal as part of the *direct load* process.

Submission Data	TRAINING E	INVIRONMENT	<b>(</b> )	lotifications + New = ×
Health Care Provider Details Please complete all details including provider number and nam includes:	e for all Health Care Providers \	vho provided services during the period. Incluc	A	Internal validation All fields are required Please amend your data or provide a comment.
<ul> <li>general practitioners (GPs)</li> <li>participating midwives</li> <li>participating nurse practitioners</li> <li>allied health workers</li> <li>dental health workers</li> <li>Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health workers,</li> <li>Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health practitioners</li> </ul> For the purposes of this report, 'salaried' medical providers incl Details of Health Care Providers who are not included in the CI Please ensure each of your provider numbers meet the followir be a letter). If your provider number doesn't have 8 characters, Note: If there are issues with the data in your HCP form (i.e. th option to see if this resolves the issues.	udes those paid a salary, wage, S (Clinical Information System) ng format: 1234567a (first six ch please just respond to the flag i ere are error messages in the N	payment under contract or sessional fee by yo data can be added manually by clicking the 'Av aracters must be numbers, the seventh charac hat displays explaining this. otifications Tray) you can select the <b>Bulk Upd</b> a	A ter can l ate men	21/Jun/2023 09:39 Internal validation Health Care Provider Details; Column: First Name (Value=Dr Brian) does not have the correct format. The Name must not include salutations such as 'Dr' or 'Prof. Please consider applying the common name fix- ups option from the Bulk Update menu to see if this resolves this flag. Please amend your data or provide a comment. 21/Jun/2023 09:39 The a letter or a number and the 8th character must u and then select Apply Common Name Fix-Ups
		Bulk Update: Please select 💌	+ Ad	
Provider Number Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Bulk Sele	ct
2988613W Armstrong	Dr Brian	Yes No		
2988613A Du, Mei		Yes No		
2988613B Atwater	Holly	Yes No		
2988613C Shaw	Noah	Yes No		

Your HCP form contains the Health Care Provider names and numbers for your health service that have been transferred from your Clinical Information System (CIS).

An "All fields are required" data validation flag will display in the *Notifications Tray* on the righthand side of the form (as shown above) as information regarding whether your providers are salaried is not contained within your CIS and therefore, not transferred to the HCP form in the Data Portal as part of the direct load process.

Up If the *Notifications Tray* doesn't display by default, select in the top right-hand corner of the form.

2. To complete the **Salaried** section of the form, select on the **Bulk update:** button (either at the top or bottom of the form) and select the applicable option from the second half of the list that displays. The options are **Mark empty Salaried as Yes**, **Mark empty Salaried as No**.

You can also complete the *Salaried* section of the form either by selecting *Yes* or *No* for each provider or by selecting the *Bulk Select* check box for the applicable provider and then

selecting on the *Bulk update:* button and selecting either *Mark selected Salaried as Yes* or *Mark selected Salaried as No*.

3. To save your changes, select Save at the bottom of the form.

The "All fields are required" data validation flag should now be removed from the *Notifications Tray*.

Other data validation flags may also display in the HCP form *Notifications Tray* for the following reasons:

- One or more of your provider numbers does not meet the required numbering format.
- The Last Name field is empty for one or more of your providers.
- One of the name cells for one or more of your providers contains a salutation (e.g., Dr, Prof) or other words other than the provider name.
- 4. If any other data validation flags do display in the **Notifications Tray**, read the message to determine what action needs to be taken.
- 5. You can then either make the required change in the applicable cell(s) or, for any validation flags relating to provider names, select <a href="https://www.elect.com">Please select</a> and then select Apply Common Name Fix Ups from the list that displays.
- 6. Select Yes in the window that displays.
- 7. Select Save at the bottom of the form.

Any validation flags associated with the provider names will now be resolved.

#### If data values are incorrect and need to be amended to address data validation flags:

i. Update the applicable data value(s) in the required cell(s) to address the data validation flags.

If you are unsure which value(s) needs to be updated, in the Notifications Tray, select for the applicable data validation flag and the cell(s) with issues will be highlighted in red. Then, select again to remove the highlighting and action the flag as required.



ii. To save the amendment and run data validation again, select B Save at the bottom of the form.

The data validation flag relating to the data value you have just amended should now disappear.

iii. If the data validation flag hasn't disappeared, repeat the process of making amendments to the data with errors and selecting Save until this occurs.

To add a new comment for a colleague to an indicator separate to the responses added to the validation flag, select **\*** New at the top of the Notifications Tray, enter your comment (linking the applicable cells if needed) and then save it.

#### If you aren't changing the data values but wish to add explanatory comments:

i. In the **Notifications Tray**, select 🗢 next to the applicable data validation flag.

The Respond to Validation Issue dialog box will display.

	Internal	validation	
	All fields a	ire required.	
	Please an	nend your data or provide a comment.	
	15/Apr/2020	) 14:44	
Addit Inforr	tional mation:		
		4000 characters remaining	
C	ancel	4000 characters remaining	

- ii. Select in the **Reason** field and select the reason you are adding a response from the drop-down list. The available categories are **Unexpected results**, **Zero results/blanks**, **Internal validation**, and **General comments**.
- iii. Enter an explanatory comment in the **Additional Information** field, if needed. This is an optional field.
- iv. To save the response, select Save
- v. Repeat this process for any other values in the indicator that need to be explained.

The comment(s) has been added underneath the data validation flag and can be viewed by anyone accessing the submission in the Data Portal.

To enter details for any providers not transferred as part of the direct load process, select
 + Add and enter in the applicable information.

If a provider(s) information needs to be removed from the form (perhaps they are a provider from a different clinic) select the *Bulk select* check box(es) at the end of the applicable row and

then select in the *Bulk update:* button (either at the top or bottom of the form) and select *Delete all selected* from the list that displays.

Once all data validation flags in the HCP form have been addressed, to exit the form and return to the Data Portal home screen, scroll to the bottom of the form, and select
 Close

The Data Portal home screen will display with the Reporting Dashboard open.

- 9. Before progressing your HCP submission through the submission workflow, answer either **Yes** or **No** to the data sharing consent questions that display under **Data Sharing**.
- **10.** To save the changes, select Save
- To progress your HCP submission to the next stage of the submission workflow, select
   Draft Submission in the Reporting Dashboard.

The Change Data Asset Status dialog box will display.

Change Data Ass	set Status
Data assets for	a Reporting Round cannot be removed.
Status	Draft Submission
Action *	Please Select an Action V
Comment	
	500 characters remaining
Cancel	

**12.** In the **Action** field, select **M** and select the required action from the list that displays.

The available actions are:

- Request Review Select this action to send your HCP submission to the Submission Reviewer within your health service for review prior to it being submitted to your CEO or their representative for approval.
- **Request Approval** Select this action to send your HCP submission directly to your CEO or their representative for approval.
- **Request Interim Processing** Select this action to progress the submission to Health and Aged Care for review prior to it going to your CEO or their representative for final approval. This process is known as *Interim Processing*. This option will only appear at this stage if you have the *Submission Reviewer* role.

If you have the access to approve HCP submissions, you will also see the Approve for Submission option in the Action list. This allows you to approve the submission yourself and then submit it directly to Health and Aged Care for processing.

**13.** In the **Comment** field, enter any additional comments regarding the action being performed on the submission, if needed.

Any user with access to view the submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

- **14.** One of the following options can now be selected when submitting your HCP report, depending on the action that has been selected in the **Action** field:
  - i. To send your HCP submission for internal review, select Review. For the next step in the process see <u>Review your HCP Submission (Submission Reviewer)</u>.
  - ii. To submit your HCP report directly to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Approval. For the next step in the process, see <u>Approve your HCP</u> <u>Submission (Submission Approver)</u>.
  - iii. To send your HCP submission to Health and Aged Care for initial review prior to sending it to your CEO or their representative for approval, select
     Request Interim Processing
     . For the next step in the process, see <u>Interim Processing</u>
     of a HCP Submission.

Your *direct load* HCP submission has now been updated and sent to either your *Submission Reviewer* for review or your CEO or their representative for approval.

An automated email will be sent to all users within your health service that have been assigned the applicable role in the Data Portal (*Submission Reviewer* or *Submission Approver*) notifying them the submission has been submitted to them for action. One of the *Submission Reviewers* or *Submission Approvers* within your health service can then action the submission as required.

### **Refresh Your Direct Load Submission**

If updates have been made to your HCP data for the current data collection period in your Clinical Information System (CIS), you can transfer the data across to the Data Portal again and the values in your HCP form for the current reporting round will be updated to reflect the new values.

The refreshed submission can then be progressed through the submission workflow as normal.

• For this to be possible, your HCP submission in the Data Portal needs to be "with" the *Submission Uploader*. That is, it needs to be at one of the following statuses: *Draft Submission*, *Submission Revision Required* or *Submission Returned to Uploader*.

UP If you need to complete the Direct Load process again to update your data in the Data Portal, **DO NOT** try to remove the submission, just follow the process above.

### Submit your HCP Report (Manual Process)

A health service using a CIS which will not automatically transfer Health Care Provider number data to the Data Portal, will need to manually create their HCP submission directly in the Data Portal.

The following procedure is used to manually submit your HCP report in the Data Portal.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports you are expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

☆ New ▼ Manage	🚔 Reporting Dashboard		0
Reporting Dashboard OSR   1 May 2022 F O Due in 27 Days O Not 1	d Reporting Round <sup>Started</sup>	+	OSR Reporting Round Status: Open Start Date: 03/May/2022 End Date: 31/May/2022 MKPI Reporting Round Status: Open Start Date: 03/May/2022 End Date: 31/May/2022
nKPI 1 May 2022 O Due in 27 Days 0 Dr Data Sharing	Reporting Round		HCP Reporting Round Status: Open Start Date: 03/May/2022 End Date: 31/May/2022
Do you agree to share your fi previous reporting periods) w Organisation (NACCHO) for t summary feedback and supp	inalised processed nKPI data (includes current and ith National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health the purpose of policy development, research and ort to organisations?	Ves No	
HCP   1 May 2022 F	Reporting Round	+	

1. To commence the submission of your manual HCP report, select  $\bigcirc$  to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting Dashboard.

The manual submission can also be created by selecting *New* > *Asset for Submission* on the menu bar.

## A blank HCP form will display, containing an explanation of what Health Care Provider information needs to be included for your health service.

Submission Data	TRAINING ENVI	RONMENT		
Health Care Provider Details				
Please complete all details including provider number and name includes:	for all Health Care Providers who provide	d services during the period. Inclu	de only those who had a Medicare	provider number. This
general practitioners (GPs)				
participating midwives				
<ul> <li>participating nurse practitioners</li> </ul>				
allied health workers				
dental health workers				
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health workers,				
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health practitioners				
For the purposes of this report, 'salaried' medical providers inclu Details of Health Care Providers who are not included in the CIS Please ensure each of your provider numbers meet the following	Jes those paid a salary, wage, payment ur (Clinical Information System) data can be format: 1234567a (first six characters mu	nder contract or sessional fee by y added manually by clicking the 'A st be numbers, the seventh chara	your organisation for the provision Add' button. Icter can be a letter or a number an	of medical services. nd the 8th character must
be a letter). If your provider number doesn't have 8 characters, p	lease just respond to the flag that displays	explaining this.		
Note: If there are issues with the data in your HCP form (i.e. the option to see if this resolves the issues.	e are error messages in the Notifications	Tray) you can select the <b>Bulk Up</b> o	date menu and then select Apply	Common Name Fix-Ups
	Bulk U	pdate: Please select 💌	+ Add	
Provider Number Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Bulk Select	
		Ves No		

In the HCP form, you need to enter details for your Health Care Providers with a Medicare number who provided services in the last twelve months.

The number provided in the form must be the eight-character Medicare provider number, not other numbers you may have that are associated with the provider.

2. Complete the cells in the first row of the your form as described below.

Field/Button	Description
Provider Number	Enter the provider number for your first provider.
	A provider number needs to be 8 characters long, with the fist 6 characters needing to be numbers. The 7 <sup>th</sup> character can then either be a number or a letter with the 8 <sup>th</sup> character needing to be a letter.
Last Name	Enter the provider's surname.
First Name	Enter the provider's first name.
Salaried	Select either <b>Yes</b> or <b>No</b> .
Bulk Select	The <b>Bulk Select</b> check boxes won't be used at this stage of the process. They are more likely to be used if you need to delete multiple providers from the form or mark a group of providers as salaried or non-salaried.

3. To save the details of your first provider, select B Save at the bottom of the form.

Use If you have not completed all the cells for the provider, a data validation flag will display in the *Notifications Tray*. To resolve the issue, either complete the cell(s) in question or select in the *Notifications Tray* and enter an explanation as to why the cell hasn't been completed. If

you need assistance in identifying which cells haven't been completed, select (). Then, select () again and action the flag as needed.

- 4. To enter details for your next provider, select + Add.
- 5. Enter the details for your next provider as described in **step 4** above.
- 6. Repeat the process for all providers you need to enter details for.

To apply bulk selections in the Salaried section of the form, select at the end of Please select and select the applicable option.

7. Once you have finished entering your data into the HCP form, select close at the bottom of the form.

The Data Portal home screen will display with the Reporting Dashboard open.

- 8. Before progressing your submission through the submission workflow, answer either **Yes** or **No** to the data sharing consent questions that display under Data Sharing.
- 9. To save the changes, select Save
- To progress the submission to the next stage of the submission workflow, select
   Draft Submission in the Reporting Dashboard.

The Change Data Asset Status dialog box will display.

Change Data A	Asset Status
Data assets	for a Reporting Round cannot be removed.
Status	Draft Submission
Action *	Please Select an Action V
Comment	
	500 characters remaining
Cancel	

11. In the Action field, select  $\mathbf{Y}$  and select the required action from the list that displays.

The available actions are:

- **Request Review** Select this action to send the submission to your *Submission Reviewer* for review prior to it being submitted to your CEO or their representative for approval.
- Request Approval Select this action to send your submission to your CEO or their representative for approval.
- **Request Interim Processing** Select this action to progress your submission to Health and Aged Care for review prior to it going to your CEO or their representative for final approval. This process is known as *Interim Processing*. This option will only appear if you have the *Submission Reviewer* role.

If you have the access to approve HCP submissions, you will see the Approve for Submission option in the Action list. This allows you to approve your submission and submit it directly to Health and Aged Care for processing. **12.** In the **Comment** field, enter any comments regarding the action being performed on the submission, if needed.

Any user with access to view your HCP submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

- **13.** One of the following options can now be selected when submitting your HCP report, depending on the action that has been selected in the **Action** field:
  - i. To submit your report for internal review, select Review. For the next step in the process, see *Review your HCP Submission (Submission Reviewer)*.
  - ii. To submit your report to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Approval. For the next step in the process, see <u>Approve your HCP</u> <u>Submission (Submission Approver)</u>.
  - iii. To send your submission to Health and Aged Care for initial review prior to sending it to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Interim Processing. For the next step in the process, see Interim Processing of an HCP Submission.

UP To save your submission as a draft without sending it on to the next stage of the submission process, select save at the bottom of the form.

Your HCP submission has now been manually created and submitted to either your *Submission Reviewer* for review or your CEO or their representative for approval.

An automated email will be sent to all users within your health service that have been assigned the applicable role in the Data Portal (*Submission Reviewer* or *Submission Approver*) notifying them your HCP report has been submitted to them for action. One of your *Submission Reviewers* or *Submission Approvers* can now action your submission as required.

### **Retrieve your HCP Submission (Submission Uploader)**

If a health service *Submission Uploader* has submitted their HCP report for either review or approval in error, they can recall it so the required amendments can be made before resubmitting the report.

The following procedure is used to retrieve your HCP submission in the Data Portal.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports you are expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

HCP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round	Status: Open Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024	
Closed 43 Days ago     Submission Ready For Approval     Data Sharing		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
Performance Report       1 July 2023 Reporting Roun         O Closed 176 Days ago       Submission Returned to Uploader	d	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Open Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024

- To retrieve your HCP submission, select the status link (
   Submission Ready For Review or Submission Ready For Approval ).
- 3. In the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select <sup>™</sup> and select *Revision Required*.
- 4. To continue, select Revision Required

Your HCP submission has now been retrieved from the next step of the submission workflow process and can be amended as required prior to being resubmitted for review or approval.

### **Review your HCP Submission (Submission Reviewer)**

When your HCP report has been submitted for review your *Submission Uploader*, it can be reviewed in the Data Portal by anyone within your health service with the *Submission Reviewer* role.

Even though any user in your health service with the *Submission Reviewer* role can review the details of your HCP submission, only one user can make changes to the submission at a time.

The following procedure is used to review your HCP submission in the Data Portal.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports you are expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

TRAINING HCP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round	Status: Open Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024	
Closed 43 Days ago     Submission Ready For Review     Data Sharing		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
		TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Open

**U** To be eligible for review, your HCP submission's status will need to be *Submission Ready for Review*.

2. To review the HCP report that has been submitted to you by your *Submission Uploader*, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting

Dashboard and select 🦳

Your HCP form will display.

Submission Da	ta   Health Care Provider De	RAINING EI	NVIRONMENT		
be a letter). If your provide	er number doesn't have 8 characters, plea	ise just respond to the flag tha	t displays explaining this.		
Note: If there are issues v option to see if this resolv	with the data in your HCP form (i.e. there a es the issues.	are error messages in the Noti	fications Tray) you can select the <b>Bulk Up</b> o	date menu an	d then select Apply Common Name Fix-Ups
			Bulk Update: Please select	+ Add	
Provider Number	Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Bulk Select	
2988613W	Armstrong	Brian	• Yes 📃 No		
2988613A	Du	Mei	• Yes No		
2988613B	Atwater	Holly	• Yes No		
2988613C	Shaw	Noah	• Yes No		
2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder	• Yes No		
2988613E	Jain	Anantha	• Yes No		
2988613F	Bannerman	Dana	• Yes No		
			Bulk Update: Please select •	+ Add	

If there are still issues in the form, a A will display on the right-hand side of the blue Submission Data bar. If the issues have been addressed through the addition of a response by

the Submission Uploader, a 🛂 will display instead.

**3.** Review the data as required and, if needed, update any data values that need to be amended so the data validation flag **A** disappears.

Uf the *Notifications Tray* doesn't display by default, select A or III in the top right-hand corner of the form.

4. To respond to the data validation flag instead of amending a value, select (\*) in the Notifications Tray next to the most recent response attached to the applicable flag.

To add a new internal comment for the *Submission Uploader* or *Approver* that you may not wish Health and Aged Care to see, select **\*** New in the *Notifications Tray*.

The Respond to Validation Issue dialog box will display.

🧙 R	espond to	spond to Validation Issue							
4	Internal All fields a Please an	<b>ralidation</b> re required. nend your data or provide a comment.							
	15/Apr/2020	14:44							
Rea: Addi Infor	son: * tional mation:	Please Select a Reason 🔻							
С	ancel	4000 characters remaining Save							

- 5. Select in the **Reason** field and select the reason the comment is being added from the drop-down list.
- 6. Enter an explanatory comment in the **Additional Information** field.
- 7. To save the response, select Save

The comment has now been saved and added to the *Notifications Tray* and the data validation flag will change from  $\mathbf{A}$  to  $\mathbf{D}$ .



WA comment you enter can be edited by selecting e and selecting *Edit Comment* or deleted by selecting and selecting *Delete Comment*.

8. Repeat this process for any other values in the HCP form that need to be changed or have comments added to them.

The comment(s) has been added and can be viewed by anyone accessing the submission in the Data Portal.

9. To exit your HCP form, scroll to the bottom of the form and select Close

The Data Portal home screen will display with the *Reporting Dashboard* open.

10. Before progressing your submission through the submission workflow, select ▶ next to the **Data Sharing** link (if the section doesn't open by default) and answer either **Yes** or **No** to the data sharing consent questions that display, if the questions haven't already been answered.

If your health service is in the ACT only the NACCHO question will display here.

Once your HCP submission has been reviewed and updated as required, select
 Submission Ready For Review in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data

Asset Status dialog box, in the **Action** field, select <sup>1</sup> and select the required action.

The available actions are:

- **Request Approval** Select this action to send your HCP submission to your CEO or their representative for approval.
- **Approve for Submission** Your CEO or their nominated representative can select this action if they are approving your submission as well as reviewing it.
- **Request Interim Processing** Select this action to progress your HCP submission to Health and Aged Care for review prior to it going to your CEO or their representative for final approval. This process is known as *Interim Processing*.
- **Revision Required** Select this action to return your submission to the *Submission Uploader(s)* within your health service for amendment.
- **12.** In the **Comment** field, enter any comments regarding the action being performed on the submission.

Any user with access to view your submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

- **13.** One of the following options can now be selected when submitting your HCP report, depending on the action that has been selected in the **Action** field:
  - i. To send your HCP submission to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Approval. For the next step in the process, see <u>Approve your HCP</u> <u>Submission (Submission Approver)</u>.
  - ii. To approve your submission and send it directly to Health and Aged Care for processing, select Approve for Submission. For the next step in the process, see <u>Process a HCP Submission</u>.
  - iii. To send your submission to Health and Aged Care for initial review prior to sending it to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Interim Processing For the next step in the process, see <u>Interim Processing of a HCP Submission</u>.
  - iv. To send your HCP submission back to your *Submission Uploader* for amendment, select Revision Required. For the next step in the process, see <u>Amend your HCP</u> <u>Submission (Submission Uploader)</u>.

Your HCP submission has now been reviewed and either sent to your CEO or their representative for approval or sent back to your *Submission Uploader* for revision as required.

### Amend your HCP Submission (Submission Uploader)

There may be times when the HCP form is returned to the *Submission Uploader* for amendment by the representative in your health service the submission has been sent to for review or approval in the Data Portal.

When it is returned for amendment, the HCP submission will have a status of *Submission Revision Required*.

The following procedure is used to amend your HCP submission in the Data Portal.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports you are expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

TRAINING CP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round	ENVIRONMENT	Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024
Closed 43 Days ago Submission Revision Required		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
		TIS PP Peperting Pound

2. To amend your HCP submission that has been returned by the *Submission Reviewer* or *Submission Approver*, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round

text and select

The HCP form will display.

Submission Da	ta   Health Care Provider 📭	RAINING ENVIR	RONMENT			2	
be a letter). If your provide	er number doesn't have 8 characters, plea	se just respond to the flag that displays e	xplaining this.				
Note: If there are issues we option to see if this resolve	with the data in your HCP form (i.e. there a es the issues.	are error messages in the Notifications Tra	ay) you can select the Bulk Up	date menu an	d then select Apply Common	Name Fi	ix-Ups
		Bulk Upd	ate: Please select 💌	+ Add			
Provider Number	Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Bulk Select			
2988613W	Armstrong	Brian	• Yes No				
2988613A	Du	Mei	• Yes No				
2988613B	Atwater	Holly	🖲 Yes 📄 No				
2988613C	Shaw	Noah	• Yes No				
2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder	💿 Yes 🔵 No				
2988613E	Jain	Anantha	• Yes 🔵 No				
2988613F	Bannerman	Dana	• Yes No				
		Bulk Upd	ate: Please select 💌	+ Add			

If there are still issues in the form, a A will display on the right-hand side of the blue Submission Data bar. If the issues have been addressed through the addition of a response by the *Submission Uploader*, a will display instead.

- **3.** Review the data in the form as required, focussing on any comments made by the *Submission Reviewer* or *Submission Approver* asking you to amend data values.
- 4. If required, update the value(s) in the required cell(s) based on the *Submission Reviewer/Submission Approver's* comments.
- 5. If you are not amending the value but wish to respond to a particular comment made by the *Submission Reviewer/Submission Approver*, select next to the comment in the **Notifications Tray**.

Up If the *Notifications* Tray doesn't display by default, select A or I in the top right-hand corner of the form.

- 6. Select in the **Reason** field that displays and select the reason the comment is being added from the drop-down list.
- 7. Enter an explanatory comment in the **Additional Information** field.
- 8. To save the response, select Save

The comment has now been saved and added to the *Notifications Tray* and the applicable validation icon will change from  $\mathbf{A}$  to  $\mathbf{P}$ .

<b>~</b> N	otifications + New C >	¢
Ą	Internal validation	^
	<ul> <li>For BMI recorded in the previous 24 months Male; Row: 35 - 44 years; the sum of <ul> <li>Overweight (BMI &gt;=25 &amp; &lt; 30) (Value=54)</li> <li>Obese (BMI &gt;= 30) (Value=0)</li> </ul> </li> <li>should be less than <ul> <li>Total clients with BMI recorded (Value=54)</li> </ul> </li> <li>Please confirm your data is correct or, if necessary, amend your data.</li> </ul>	
	24/Jan/2020 11:35	
1	Data are correct Values are correct as entered	
	Stuart Dunn   Health Service ABC Pty Ltd   24/Jan/2020 11:35	

Your comment can be edited by selecting and selecting *Edit Comment* or deleted by selecting and selecting *Delete Comment*.

9. Repeat this process for any other values in the form that need to be addressed.

The comment(s) has been added and can be viewed by anyone accessing the submission.

**10.** To exit the HCP form, scroll to the bottom of the form and select

The Data Portal home screen will display with the Reporting Dashboard open.

11. Before progressing the submission through the submission workflow, select ▶ next to the Data Sharing link (if the section doesn't open by default) and answer either Yes or No to the data sharing consent questions that display, if the questions haven't already been answered.

If your health service is in the ACT only the NACCHO question will display here.

Once your submission has been reviewed and updated as required, select
 Submission Revision Required in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select <sup>SC</sup> and select the required action.

Change Data Asse	t Status
Data assets for a	Reporting Round cannot be removed.
Status	Submission Revision Required
Action *	Please Select an Action V
Comment	
Cancel	500 characters remaining

The available actions are:

- **Request Review** Select this action to send your HCP submission back to your *Submission Reviewer* for review again.
- Request Approval Select this action to send your submission directly to your CEO or their representative for approval.

If you have access to approve your HCP submission, you will also see the Approve for Submission option in the action list. This allows you to approve your HCP report and submit it directly to Health and Aged Care for processing.

**13.** In the **Comment** field, enter any comments regarding the action being performed on the submission, if needed.

Any user with access to view your submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

- **14.** One of the following options can now be selected when submitting your HCP report, depending on the action that has been selected in the **Action** field:
  - i. To send your submission to your *Submission Reviewer* for review again, select Request Review
    . For the next step in the process, see <u>Review your HCP Submission</u> <u>(Submission Reviewer)</u>.
  - ii. To send your submission to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Approval. For the next step in the process, see <u>Approve your HCP</u> <u>Submission (Submission Approver)</u>.

Your HCP submission has now been amended and either sent back to your *Submission Reviewer* for review or sent straight on to your CEO or their representative for approval.

An automated email will be sent to all users within your health service that have been assigned the applicable role in the Data Portal (*Reviewer* or *Approver*) notifying them your report has been submitted to them for action. One of your *Submission Reviewers* or *Submission Approvers* can now action the submission again as required.

# Approve your HCP Submission (Submission Approver)

A HCP submission can be approved by anyone within your health service with the *Submission Approver* role in the Data Portal. Traditionally, the task of approval in a health service will be reserved for your CEO or their representative. In smaller health services, the person approving the submission may also be the person who has reviewed and/or submitted the report.

The following procedure is used to approve your HCP submission in the Data Portal.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

HCP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round		Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024
Closed 43 Days ago     Submission Ready For Approval     Data Sharing		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
		TIS PR Reporting Round

## **2.** To approve your HCP submission, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text and select **•**.

#### The HCP form will display.

<	Submission Dat	a Health Care Provider De	RAINING ENVIR	ONMENT			2	=
be	a letter). If your provider	number doesn't have 8 characters, pleas	e just respond to the flag that displays exp	laining this.				
No op	ote: If there are issues wi tion to see if this resolve:	ith the data in your HCP form (i.e. there ar s the issues.	e error messages in the Notifications Tray)	) you can select the Bulk Up	date menu an	d then select Apply Commo	on Name Fi	ix-Ups
-								
			Bulk Update	e: Please select 💌	+ Add			
					Bulk			
	Provider Number	Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Select			
	2988613W	Armstrong	Brian	• Yes 🕗 No				
	2988613A	Du	Mei	• Yes 📃 No				
	2988613B	Atwater	Holly	💽 Yes 📃 No				
	2988613C	Shaw	Noah	• Yes No				
	2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder	💽 Yes 📃 No				
	2988613E	Jain	Anantha	• Yes No				
	2988613F	Bannerman	Dana	• Yes 📃 No				
			Bulk Update	e: Please select •	+ Add			

**3.** Review the data in your HCP form as required, reading any comments that have been left for you in the Notifications Tray, if applicable.

U If the Notifications Tray doesn't display by default, select 🛂 in the top right-hand corner of the form to open it.

- 4. If the comment is just for your information, or you're happy it has been addressed as needed through the data that has been entered into the section, select 🕑 at the top of the comment in the Notifications Tray.
- 5. In the Notifications window that displays, select

The comment has now been removed from your HCP form.

6. Repeat steps 2 to 5 as needed for each comment that has been left in the form by your *Submission Uploader/Reviewer*.

🥙 If you need to respond to one of the comments that has been left by your Submission

*Uploader* or *Reviewer*, select () in the comment in the Notifications Tray. In the window that displays, select a reason and enter your response in the *Additional Information* field and select

Save . Youor response has now been added and can be addressed by your *Submission Uploader* as needed onvce you send your HCP submission back to them for amendment.

7. To exit your HCP form, scroll to the bottom of the form and select

The Data Portal home screen will display with the Reporting Dashboard open.

8. Once your HCP submission has been reviewed and updated as required, select

Submission Ready For Approval in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select and select Approve for Submission.

If you responded to one of the comments in the form and need to send the hcp report back to your Submission Uploader so they can address your response, select Revision Required and then select Revision Required.

- **9.** In the **Comment** field, enter any comments about the action being performed on the HCP submission.
- To approve the HCP submission and send it for processing by the AIHW, select
   Approve for Submission
   See the *Process a HCP Submission* QRG for the next step in the process.

Your HCP submission has now been approved and sent to Health and Aged Care for processing in the Data Portal.

## **Process a HCP Submission (Health and Aged Care)**

Once a HCP submission has been approved by your CEO or their representative, it will be sent to Health and Aged Care for processing in the Data Portal in their role as the external *Data Receiver*.

The first step of processing the submission in the Data Portal is for Health and Aged Care to review the submission to ensure the provider information contained within the form is complete and correct.

Once Health and Aged Care has reviewed the HCP form and is comfortable with the content, the submission can be processed as complete in the Data Portal, ready to be used in any reports and publications produced by Health and Aged Care as required.

### Step 1 – Review the HCP Submission

Once Health and Aged Care has received your approved submission, they will need to review the submission in the Data Portal to ensure it is ready to go to the next stage of the process. For the submission to be processed by Health and Aged Care, it will need to have the status of *Submission Approved*.

Once Health and Aged Care has reviewed the submission in the Data Portal and actioned the submission as ready to be processed, the submission's status will change to *Ready for Processing*.

All *Submission Uploaders* from your health service will then receive an email informing them the status of the submission has been changed to *Ready for Processing*. This means Health and Aged Care has taken the submission from their backlog and are now working on it.

### Step 2 – Process the HCP Submission

Once your submission has the status of *Ready for Processing* in the Data Portal, Health and Aged Care will process it. Once Health and Aged Care has processed your submission in the Data Portal, the submission's status will change to *Processed* and the processing of the submission is now complete.

The information within the HCP form can now be used by Health and Aged Care in any publications that need to be produced and made available to users of the Data Portal with the required file permissions.

### **Exception Reporting**

Once your HCP submission has been approved by your CEO or their representative, it will be sent to Health and Aged Care for processing. To action the submission in the Data Portal, a Health and Aged Care officer needs to have the *Data Receiver* role.

If, upon review of the submission, Health and Aged Care identifies anomalies in the data being reported on, they will initiate the exception reporting process to add comments regarding the anomalies in the attached form and send the submission back to you for amendment.

Up If the information in the submission is correct and no data needs amendment, Health and Aged Care can process the submission to complete the submission process. For more information, see *Process a HCP Submission (Health and Aged Care)* earlier in this guide.

The *first* step in initiating the exception reporting process is for Health and Aged Care to update the status of the submission to *Ready for Processing* in the Data Portal, so guiding comments can be added to the relevant indicators/sections of the form to assist you as the health service when you amend the data.

The *second* step of the process is for Health and Aged Care to go into the HCP form and add the required comments, so your *Submission Uploader(s)* can easily see the changes they need to make to the data in the form before the submission can be processed as complete by Health and Aged Care.

Once the *Health and Aged Care* has reviewed the HCP form and made any comments against the indicators/sections within the form, they will send it back to your health service. One of the *Submission Uploaders* in your health service should then amend the submission and the required information in the form and send the submission back through the submission workflow process as required.

# Step 1 – Set the Submission Status to Ready for Processing (Health and Aged Care)

Once it has been confirmed by Health and Aged Care that there is data in the HCP form that will need to be amended by the health service, Health and Aged Care will need to change the status of the submission to *Ready for Processing* so they can add explanatory comments for the health service to the relevant sections of the form.

# Step 2 – Add Comments to the HCP Form and Return it to the Health Service for Amendment (Health and Aged Care)

Once a HCP submission has the status of *Ready for Processing*, Health and Aged Care can add comments to any data values they feel need to be amended and can then return it to your health service's *Submission Uploaders* for amendment.

Once this is done, the submission's status will change to *Submission Returned to Uploader* and one of your health service's *Submission Uploaders* now need to address the comments Health and Aged Care made in the form before sending the submission back through the submission approval process.

Even though Health and Aged Care has sent the submission back to you, they will still be able to access the submission in "read only" mode so they can provide you with support in amending any data within the submission as required.

# Step 3 – Amend your HCP Submission based on Health feedback (Submission Uploader)

There may be times when an approved HCP submission is returned to you for amendment by Health and Aged Care due to issues they have identified in the data contained in the form.

When your HCP submission is returned by Health and Aged Care, all *Submission Uploaders* in your health service will receive an email detailing the comments Health and Aged Care has made regarding the data contained within your form that needs to be amended.

A *Submission Uploader* within your health service will then need to amend the applicable values in the form in the Data Portal, directly addressing the comments made by Health and Aged Care.

When your HCP submission is returned to you by Health and Aged Care, it will have the status of *Submission Returned to Uploader*.

The following procedure is used to amend your HCP submission based on Health and Aged Care feedback.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

ICP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round		Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024
<ul> <li>Due in 7 Days</li> <li>Submission Returned to Uploader   <ul> <li>Unresolved Comm</li> <li>Data Sharing</li> </ul> </li></ul>	nents Exist	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
, ,, ,		TIS PR Reporting Round

2. To amend your HCP submission, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text and select .

#### Your HCP form will display.

Please ensure each of you be a letter). If your provide	Ir provider numbers meet the following for Ir number doesn't have 8 characters, pleas with the data in your HCR form (i.e. there a	mat: 1234567a (first six characters must l se just respond to the flag that displays ex	be numbers, the seventh chara plaining this.	cter can be	3	Notifications	+ New	] ≡ ×
option to see if this resolve	is the issues.	Bulk Upda	tte: Please select 💌	+ Add	4	Are these you collect9ion per many more pr period.	r only provid riod? You us oviders durin	ers for the ually have ug the
Provider Number	Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Bulk Select		Stuart Dunn Staff   24/Apr/20	Departmenta 24 14:22	I Internal
2988613W	Armstrong	Brian	🖲 Yes 🔵 No					
2988613A	Du	Mei	• Yes 🔵 No					
2988613B	Atwater	Holly	🖲 Yes 🔵 No					
2988613C	Shaw	Noah	• Yes No					
2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder	🖲 Yes 🔵 No					
2988613E	Jain	Anantha	• Yes No					
2988613F	Bannerman	Dana	🖲 Yes 🔵 No					
		Bulk Upda	te: Please select •	+ Add				

The *Notifications Tray* will display any comments Health and Aged Care has made, either against existing data validation flags or their own comments.

Up If the *Notifications Tray* doesn't display by default, select A or I in the top right-hand corner of the screen.

- 3. Review each of the comments made by Health and Aged Care.
- **4.** Update the value(s) in the required cell(s), as needed, addressing Health and Aged Care's comments.
- 5. To save the changes, select save at the bottom of the form.

The applicable data validation flag should now disappear due to the changes you have made to your data.

 ${}^{
u}$  If you believe the value(s) in question is correct and doesn't need to be updated, you

should instead select () for the comment left by Health, select a *Reason* and then add your explanation for why you aren't changing the value in the *Additional Information* field. To save your response, select Save.

6. Repeat this process for any other changes that need to be made to the data in response to the comments made by Health and Aged Care.

<sup>♥</sup> If you have amended the required data and would like to add an explanatory comment for Health and Aged Care, select <sup>+ New</sup> at the top of the *Notifications Tray*, select a *Reason* and add your comment in the *Additional Information* field.

The comments have now been added and can be viewed by anyone accessing your submission in the future.

7. To exit your HCP form, scroll to the bottom of the HCP form and select Close.

The Data Portal home screen will display with the Reporting Dashboard open.

8. Before progressing your submission through the submission workflow, select ► next to the **Data Sharing** link (if the section doesn't open by default) and answer either **Yes** or **No** to

the data sharing consent questions that display, if the questions haven't already been answered.

🧶 If your health service is in the ACT only the NACCHO question will display here.

Once your HCP submission has been reviewed and updated as required, select
 Submission Returned to Uploader in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select and select the required action.

The available actions are:

- **Request Review** Select this action to send your HCP submission to your *Submission Reviewer* for review again.
- **Request Approval** Select this action to send your submission back to your CEO or their representative for approval.

If you can approve your HCP submission, you will see the Approve for Submission option in the action list. This allows you to approve the submission and submit it directly to Health and Aged Care for processing again.

**10.** In the **Comment** field, enter any comments regarding the action being performed on your submission, if needed.

Any user with access to view your submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

- **11.** One of the following options can now be selected when submitting your HCP report, depending on the action that was selected in the **Action** field:
  - i. To send your HCP submission to your *Submission Reviewer* for review again, select Request Review
    . For the next step in the process, see <u>Step 4 - Review your HCP</u> <u>Submission based on Health Feedback (Submission Reviewer)</u>.
  - ii. To send your submission back to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Approval. For the next step in the process, see <u>Step 5 Approve your</u> <u>HCP Submission based on Health Feedback (Submission Approver)</u>.

Your HCP submission has now been amended and either sent on to your *Submission Reviewer* for further review or sent straight on to your CEO or their representative for approval again.

An automated email will be sent to all users within your health service that have been assigned the applicable role in the Data Portal (*Submission Reviewer* or *Submission Approver*) notifying them your submission has been submitted to them for action.

## Step 4 – Review your HCP submission based on Health feedback (Submission Reviewer)

If Health and Aged Care has identified anomalies in your data in your HCP form sent to them for processing, they will add comments to the data and send the submission back to your health service for amendment. Once the *Submission Uploader* in your health service has amended the anomalies identified, they may send the amended submission on to the *Submission Reviewer* to be reviewed again prior to being sent again for internal approval.

The following procedure is used to review your HCP submission in the Health Data Portal based on Health feedback.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

TRAINING	ENVIRONMENT	Performance Report Reporting Status: Open
CP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round		End Date: 04/Oct/2024
Due in 7 Days Submission Ready For Review Data Sharing		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
		TIS PR Reporting Round

2. To review your HCP submission, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting Dashboard and select .

The HCP form will display

Submission Date	ta   Health Care Provider De	RAINING ENV	IRONMENT			🤉 🔳
be a letter). If your provide	er number doesn't have 8 characters, plea	se just respond to the flag that displa	ys explaining this.			
Note: If there are issues v option to see if this resolve	vith the data in your HCP form (i.e. there a es the issues.	re error messages in the Notification	s Tray) you can select the Bulk	Update menu an	d then select Apply Common N	ame Fix-Ups
		Bulk	Update: Please select •	+ Add		
Provider Number	Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Bulk Select		
2988613W	Armstrong	Brian	• Yes 🕖 No			
2988613A	Du	Mei	• Yes No			
2988613B	Atwater	Holly	🖲 Yes 🔵 No			
2988613C	Shaw	Noah	• Yes No			
2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder	• Yes 🕖 No			
2988613E	Jain	Anantha	• Yes No			
2988613F	Bannerman	Dana	• Yes 🕖 No			
		Bulk	Update: Please select •	+ Add		

**3.** Review the data in the form and any accompanying comments as required.

Each of the comments added to the form can be read to see the changes that were requested by Health and Aged Care and the subsequent updates made by your *Submission Uploader* in response.

- 4. Update any data values if needed to address outstanding data validation issues.
- To add a comment for your colleagues explaining any change you have made to the data, select + New at the top of the Notifications Tray.

The Add Comment dialog box will display.

🔍 Add Comment	t
Click on o	cells in the form to link them to the comment. Click the cell again to un-link it
Reason: *	Please Select a Reason
Additional Information:	
Cancel	4000 characters remaining Private Conversation Save

- **6.** If needed, select the cell(s) to be linked to the comment you are adding.
- 7. Select in the **Reason** field and select the reason the comment is being added from the drop-down list.
- 8. Enter an explanatory comment in the **Additional Information** field.
- 9. To make the comment private so the Health and Aged Care can't see it, select the **Private Conversation** check box.
- **10.** To save the response, select Save

Your comment can be edited by selecting and selecting *Edit Comment* or deleted by selecting and selecting *Delete Comment*.

**11.** Repeat this process for any other values in the form that need to be changed.

The comment(s) has been added and can be viewed by anyone accessing the submission in the Data Portal.

- **12.** To save your comments and any data value changes, select Save at the bottom of the form.
- **13.** To exit your HCP form, scroll to the bottom of the form and select

The Data Portal home screen will display with the Reporting Dashboard open.

14. Before progressing the submission through the submission workflow, select ▶ next to the Data Sharing link (if the section doesn't open by default) and answer either Yes or No to the Data Sharing Consent questions that display, if the questions haven't already been answered.

If your health service is in the ACT only the NACCHO question will display here.

15. Once your submission has been reviewed and updated as required, select
 Submission Ready For Review in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select 1 and select the required action.

The available actions are:

- **Request Approval** Select this action to send your submission to your CEO or their representative again for re-approval.
- **Approve for Submission** Your CEO or nominated representative can select this action if they are approving the submission as well as reviewing it.
- **Request Interim Processing** Select this action to progress your submission to Health and Aged Care for review prior to it going to your CEO or their representative for approval. This process is known as Interim Processing.
- **Revision Required** Select this action to return your submission to the *Submission Uploader* again for further amendment.
- **16.** In the **Comment** field, enter any comments regarding the action being performed on the submission.

Any user with access to view your submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

- **17.** One of the following options can now be selected when submitting your HCP report, depending on the action that has been selected in the **Action** field:
  - i. To send your submission back to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Approval. For the next step in the process, see <u>Step 5 Approve your</u> <u>HCP Submission based on Health Feedback (Submission Approver)</u>.
  - ii. To approve your submission and send it back to Health and Aged Care for processing again, select Approve for Submission. For the next step in the process, see <u>Process a HCP Submission</u>.
  - iii. To send your submission to Health and Aged Care for initial review prior to sending it to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Interim Processing. For the next step in the process, see <u>Interim Processing of a HCP Submission</u>.
  - iv. To send your submission back to your *Submission Uploader* for further amendment, select Revision Required. For the next step in the process, see <u>Step 3 Amend your</u> <u>HCP Submission based on Health Feedback (Submission Uploader)</u>.

Your submission has now been reviewed and either sent for approval again or sent back to your *Submission Uploader* for further revision.

## Step 5 – Approve your HCP Submission based on Health feedback (Submission Approver)

Once your submission has been returned to your health service by Health and Aged Care due to anomalies in the data, one of your *Submission Uploaders* will need to make the required changes to the data and then send your submission back through the internal review and approval process prior to the amended submission being sent back to Health and Aged Care for processing.

The following procedure is used to approve your HCP submission in the Data Portal after Health feedback.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

		Olaldo. Opon
HCP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round	Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024	
Due in 7 Days     Submission Ready For Approval     Data Sharing		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
		TIS PR Reporting Round

2. To approve your HCP submission, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting Dashboard and select .

Your HCP form will display.

<	Submission Dat	a   Health Care Provider De	RAINING ENVIR	ONMENT			2	≡
be	a letter). If your provide	r number doesn't have 8 characters, pleas	e just respond to the flag that displays exp	laining this.				
No op	ote: If there are issues w tion to see if this resolve	rith the data in your HCP form (i.e. there ar as the issues.	re error messages in the Notifications Tray)	you can select the Bulk Up	odate menu an	nd then select Apply Comm	on Name ⊦	-ix-Ups
-								
			Bulk Update	e: Please select	+ Add			
					Bulk			
	Provider Number	Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Select			
	2988613W	Armstrong	Brian	• Yes 🕖 No				
	2988613A	Du	Mei	• Yes 🔵 No				
	2988613B	Atwater	Holly	💿 Yes 🔵 No				
	2988613C	Shaw	Noah	• Yes 🔵 No				
	2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder	💿 Yes 📃 No				
	2988613E	Jain	Anantha	• Yes 🔵 No				
	2988613F	Bannerman	Dana	• Yes 🕖 No				
			Bulk Update	e: Please select •	+ Add			

**3.** Review the data in your HCP form as required, reading any comments that have been left for you in the Notifications Tray, if applicable.

Uf the Notifications Tray doesn't display by default, select 🛂 in the top right-hand corner of the form to open it.

- 4. If the comment is just for your information, or you're happy it has been addressed as needed through the data that has been entered into the section, select 🕑 at the top of the comment in the Notifications Tray.
- 5. In the Notifications window that displays, select

The comment has now been removed from your HCP form.

6. Repeat steps 2 to 5 as needed for each comment that has been left in the form by your *Submission Uploader/Reviewer*.

If you need to respond to one of the comments that has been left by your *Submission Uploader* or *Reviewer*, select  $\bigcirc$  in the comment in the Notifications Tray. In the window that displays, select a reason and enter your response in the *Additional Information* field and select

Save . Youor response has now been added and can be addressed by your *Submission Uploader* as needed onvce you send your HCP submission back to them for amendment.

7. To exit your HCP form, scroll to the bottom of the form and select

The Data Portal home screen will display with the Reporting Dashboard open.

8. Once your HCP submission has been reviewed and updated as required, select

Submission Ready For Approval in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select and select Approve for Submission.

If you responded to one of the comments in the form and need to send the hcp report back to your Submission Uploader so they can address your response, select Revision Required and then select Revision Required.

- **9.** In the **Comment** field, enter any comments about the action being performed on the HCP submission.
- To approve the HCP submission and send it for processing by the AIHW, select
   Approve for Submission
   See the Process a HCP Submission QRG for the next step in the process.

Your HCP submission has now been approved and sent to Health and Aged Care again for processing in the Data Portal.

### Indigenous Health Interim Processing Workflow



### **Interim Processing of a HCP Submission**

Interim Processing of a HCP submission will be available to health services during a reporting round to allow them to send a submission on to the Department of Health and Aged Care's First Nations Health Division for review and processing prior to it going to the health service's CEO, or their representative, for formal approval.

Doing this avoids the situation of a CEO approving a submission only to have Health and Aged Care send it back to the health service for amendment so it needs to be approved again. Some health service CEOs may prefer to be the last person to see the submission and give formal approval once all other parties have reviewed and approved the submission as required. In these cases, Interim Processing will be the most suitable procedure for the health service to follow.

UP To send the submission for interim processing, the health service user must have the role of *Submission Reviewer* in the Data Portal. Interim processing can't be initiated by the *Submission Uploader*.

### Step 1 - Initiate Interim Processing (Submission Reviewer)

When a HCP submission has been updated (direct load) or created (manual submission) by a *Submission Uploader* in your health service and sent to your *Submission Reviewer* for review, the *Submission Reviewer* can choose to send the submission to Health and Aged Care for review and approval prior to it going to your CEO or their representative for approval. This is known as *Interim Processing*.

This section of the user guide shows the process of initiating interim processing with the submission at the status of *Submission Ready for Review*. Please note though that interim processing can also be initiated when the submission is at the status of *Draft Submission* if the user has the *Submission Reviewer* role. This means the user doesn't have to set the submission to *Submission Ready for Review* before instigating interim processing.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the **Reporting Dashboard** open.

A list of the reports your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

HCP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round	Status: Open Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024
O Due in 7 Days     Submission Ready For Review     Data Sharing	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
	TIS PR Reporting Round

- Before progressing your HCP submission through the submission workflow, select the Data Sharing link (if the section doesn't open by default) and answer either Yes or No to the data sharing consent questions that display, if the questions haven't already been answered.
  - If your health service is in the ACT only the NACCHO question will display here.

- To initiate interim processing, select Submission Ready For Review in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select select and select Request Interim Processing.
- 4. In the **Comment** field, enter any comments for Health and Aged Care.

Any user with access to view the submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

5. To send your submission to Health and Aged Care for interim processing, select Request Interim Processing

The status of your HCP submission has now been set to *Interim Submitted* and Health and Aged Care can now review the submission as required to assess its suitability before it goes to the health service CEO, or their representative for approval.

### Step 2 – Review the Submission (Health and Aged Care)

Once your *Submission Reviewer* has requested interim processing of a submission, the submission's status will be set to *Interim Submitted* and it will be sent to Health and Aged Care for review.

Health and Aged Care will now go into the submission and set it to the status of *Ready for Interim Processing* to inform your health service that the submission has been removed from their backlog and is now being worked on.

### Step 3 – Process the Submission (Health and Aged Care)

When the submission has progressed to the status of *Ready for Interim Processing*, it can be reviewed by Health and Aged Care and sent back to your health service for your final review and approval.

If any issues are identified with the data as part of Health and Aged Care's review, Health and Aged Care will add comments to the data and send the submission back to your health service's *Submission Uploaders* for amendment as per the normal exception reporting process. For more information, see <u>Exception Reporting</u> earlier in this guide.

## Step 4 – Conduct a Final Review of the Submission (Submission Reviewer)

If Health and Aged Care has reviewed your HCP submission and is happy with it, they will send it on to your health service's *Submission Reviewer* for final review prior to approval. The submission's status will be set to *Submission Ready for Final Review*.

The following procedure is used to conduct a final review on your HCP submission sent for Interim Processing in the Health Data Portal.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

CP   5 March 2024 Reporting Round		Status: Open Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024
Due in 7 Days Submission Ready for Final Review		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
		TIS PR Reporting Round

2. To conduct a final review of your HCP submission, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting Dashboard and select .

Your HCP form will display and the data in the form can be reviewed for accuracy.

<	Submission Data	a   Health Care Provider Def	RAINING ENVIR	ONMENT			2	
be a	letter). If your provider	number doesn't have 8 characters, pleas	e just respond to the flag that displays ex	plaining this.				
Note	e: If there are issues wit on to see if this resolves	th the data in your HCP form (i.e. there ar s the issues.	e error messages in the Notifications Tra	y) you can select the <b>Bulk Up</b>	date menu and	then select Apply Co	mmon Name F	ix-Ups
			Bulk Upda	ate: Please select 💌	+ Add			
F	Provider Number	Last Name	First Name	Salaried	Bulk Select			
	2988613W	Armstrong	Brian	🖲 Yes 🔵 No				
	2988613A	Du	Mei	• Yes No				
	2988613B	Atwater	Holly	🖲 Yes 🔵 No				
	2988613C	Shaw	Noah	• Yes No				
	2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder	🖲 Yes 🔵 No				
	2988613E	Jain	Anantha	• Yes 🔵 No				
	2988613F	Bannerman	Dana	• Yes 🕖 No				
			Bulk Upda	ate: Please select •	+ Add			

3. Once the content of your HCP form has been reviewed, select Close at the bottom of the form.

The Data Portal home screen will again display with the Reporting Dashboard open.

4. To action your submission, select Submission Ready for Final Review in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select Status and select Request Approval.

If changes need to be made to any of the data in your submission, select Revision Required to send the submission back to the Submission Uploader for amendment.

5. In the **Comment** field, enter any comments regarding the action being performed on your submission.

Any user with access to view your submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

6. To send your submission on to your CEO or their representative for approval, select Request Approval

Your HCP submission has been sent to your CEO or their representative for final approval.

## Step 5 – Approve your HCP Submission (Submission Approved)

When your HCP submission has the status of *Submission Ready for Final Approval*, it can be approved by your *Submission Approver* (usually your CEO or their representative) and progressed on to the status of *Processed*.

The following procedure is used to approve your HCP submission as part of Interim Processing in the Data Portal.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

ICP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round		Status: Open Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024
Due In 7 Days     Submission Ready for Final Approval     Data Sharing		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes 🔿 No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
,		TIS PR Reporting Round

**2.** To approve your HCP submission, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting Dashboard and select **.** 

#### Your HCP form will display, and the data can be reviewed for accuracy.

Submission Date	ta   Health Care Provider 🗗	RAINING	ENVIRO	NMENT		2	? ≡
be a letter). If your provide Note: If there are issues w option to see if this resolve	r number doesn't have 8 characters, ple vith the data in your HCP form (i.e. there as the issues.	ase just respond to the flag are error messages in the	g that displays explair Notifications Tray) yo	ning this. ou can select the <b>Bulk U</b>	pdate menu an	d then select Apply Common Nam	e Fix-Ups
			Bulk Update:	Please select	+ Add		
Provider Number	Last Name	First Name		Salaried	Bulk Select		
2988613W	Armstrong	Brian		• Yes 🕓 No			
2988613A	Du	Mei		• Yes No			
2988613B	Atwater	Holly		• Yes 🕖 No			
2988613C	Shaw	Noah		• Yes 🔵 No			
2988613D	Nagarkar	Mohinder		• Yes 🕖 No			
2988613E	Jain	Anantha		• Yes No			
2988613F	Bannerman	Dana		• Yes 🕖 No			
			Bulk Update:	Please select	+ Add		

- **3.** Once the content of the HCP form has been reviewed, select **Close** at the bottom of the form.
- 4. To approve the submission, select <sup>●</sup> Submission Ready For Approval in the Reporting Dashboard and, in the Change Data Asset Status dialog box, in the Action field, select <sup>●</sup> and select Approve for Submission.

Up If changes need to be made to any of the data in the submission, select *Revision Required* to send your submission back to the *Submission Uploader* for amendment.

5. In the **Comment** field, enter any comments regarding the action being performed on the submission.

Any user with access to view your submission will be able to view any comments entered here.

6. To approve your submission, select Approve for Submission

Your submission has been progressed to the status of *Processed* and Interim Processing is now complete.

### **Work with Comments**

As part of the submission workflow process in the Data Portal, it is important for your health service and Health and Aged Care to be able to engage in a "conversation" regarding the HCP data that has been recorded in the submission.

There may be times, for example, when your health service needs to explain to Health and Aged Care why a particular data value has been recorded, as it may be higher or lower than expected. Health and Aged Care may then need to respond if further explanation is needed from your health service.

There may also be times when the participating users from your health service need to have an internal, private "conversation" in the Data Portal regarding your data, separate to those conversations held with Health and Aged Care in response to a data validation issue.

To ensure the different scenarios above can occur, the concept of "threaded comments" has been introduced in the Data Portal. This allows conversations to occur in the Data Portal both between your health service and Health and Aged Care and internally within your health service. It also allows for these conversations to be marked as complete by the relevant parties once a conversation has come to its conclusion.

### Respond to a data validation flag in your form

When a data validation flag appears in your HCP form regarding a particular value or values, and you believe the values in question are correct and don't need to be changed, you will need to respond to the message explaining to Health and Aged Care why the value doesn't need to be changed.

You will not be able to submit your submission to Health and Aged Care until a data validation flag is addressed by either amending the values in question or responding to the flag.

The following procedure is used to respond to a data validation flag in your HCP form.

- 1. Ensure your HCP form is displayed.
- 2. Navigate to the **Notifications Tray** containing the data validation flag you wish to respond to.

Uf the *Notifications Tray* doesn't display by default, select **1** in the top right-hand corner of the form.

- **3.** If needed, select <sup>(\*)</sup> next to the flag to confirm the data values the data validation flag is referring to.
- **4.** To add your response to the flag, in the **Notifications Tray**, select 🔊 next to the flag.

The Respond to Validation Issue dialog box will display.

	espond to \	alidation Issue				
A	Internal validation All fields are required Please amend your data or provide a comment.					
	08/Nov/2019	13:22				
Reas Addi Infor	son: * tional mation:	Please Select a Reason	·			
		4000 characters remaining				
С	ancel		Save			

- 5. Select in the **Reason** field that displays and select the reason you are responding from the drop-down list. The available categories are **Unexpected results**, **Zero results**/blanks, **Internal validation**, and **General comments**. Each category then has several options that can be selected from.
- 6. Enter an explanatory comment in the **Additional Information** field.
- 7. To save the response, select Save

Your response will now appear under the data validation flag you have responded to and can be viewed/responded to by anyone else with access to your submission (including Health and Aged Care).

You can now submit your HCP submission through the submission workflow and both the reviewers and approvers within your health service, and Health and Aged Care, will be able to view your comment and respond to it if needed.

Once you have added a response against a data validation flag, the icon displayed will change from  $\triangle$  to  $\bigcirc$ , indicating that the validation issue has been resolved and will not prevent your submission from being submitted to Health and Aged Care for processing.

## Add a new "internal comment" for use within your Health Service

As part of the submission of your HCP submission in the Data Portal, you may wish to add a comment that you only wish to share with other users within your health service. For example, you may wish as the *Submission Reviewer* to ask a question about some of the data in the form, or you may want to provide an explanation about a data value to your CEO, so they understand the context regarding a particular value before considering whether to approve your submission.

In these instances, you would not want Health and Aged Care to see these comments as they were purely for use within your health service.

The following procedure is used to commence a private conversation in your HCP form in the Data Portal by adding an "internal comment".

- 1. Ensure your HCP form is displayed.
- 2. Navigate to the **Notifications Tray**.

Uf the *Notifications Tray* doesn't display by default, select in the top right-hand corner of the form.

**3.** To add your "internal comment", select **\*** New at the top of the **Notifications Tray**.

The Add Comment dialog box will display.

🔍 Add Commen	it
Click on	cells in the form to link them to the comment. Click the cell again to un-link it
Reason: *	Please Select a Reason
Additional	
information:	
	1000 share stars remaining
Cancel	Private Conversation Save

- 4. Select in the **Reason** field that displays and select the reason the new comment is being added from the drop-down list. The available categories are **Unexpected results**, **Zero results/blanks**, **Internal validation**, and **General comments**. Each category then has several options that can be selected from.
- Select the cell or cells your comment relates to. This provides additional context for your colleagues reading your comment. For more information, see <u>Link a Comment to</u> <u>Particular Cells in an Indicator</u>.
- 6. Enter an explanatory comment in the **Additional Information** field.
- 7. To mark the comment as private so Health and Aged Care can't see it, select the **Private Conversation** check box.
- 8. To save the comment, select Save

Your new comment can now be viewed by anyone within your health service with access to your HCP submission, but not Health and Aged Care.

Your internal, "private" comment will display in purple, as opposed to any data validation flags and associated responses, which will be red (data validation flag) or orange (data validation flag with a response).

### Mark an Internal Comment as Complete

If a private conversation has been conducted in your HCP submission using the "internal comment" functionality, someone within your health service (*Submission Uploader, Reviewer* or *Approver*) can mark this conversation as complete prior to the submission being sent to Health and Aged Care for processing if they would like to remove the comment from the submission.

The following procedure is used to mark a private conversation in your HCP form as complete in the Data Portal.

- 1. Ensure your HCP form is displayed.
- 2. Navigate to the Notifications Tray.

Up If the *Notifications Tray* doesn't display by default, select in the top right-hand corner of the form.

3. To mark a conversation as complete, select  $\checkmark$  next to the applicable comment/conversation in the **Notifications Tray**.

The Mark as Complete dialog box will display.

🔍 Mark as Complete												
8	Technical issue with CIS/extraction process has changed results											
	Total babies born value was incorrect so this has been amended											
	🌡 Stuart Dun	n   Health Service ABC Pty Ltd   16/Apr/2020 16:35	A Private Conversation									
Addi Infor	itional mation:											
C	Cancel	4000 characters remaining	Private Conversation	Save								

4. In the **Additional Information** field, you can enter an explanation regarding why you are marking the conversation as complete, if you choose.

5. To save the comment, select Save

The conversation will now disappear.

Only Health and Aged Care can mark comments and conversations attached to automated data validation flags as complete. If any such comments remain at the end of the submission process, Health and Aged Care needs to mark these comments as complete to be able to set the submission to the status of *Processed*.

### Link a Comment to Particular Cells in an Indicator/Tab

If there is a particular data value you would like to draw another user's attention to, you can add a comment and link a particular cell or cells to that comment. For example, you may wish to ask Health and Aged Care a question about a particular provider or point out to them that an incorrect provider number has been transferred across from your CIS.

- **1.** Ensure the HCP form is displayed.
- **2.** Navigate to the Notifications Tray.

U If the *Notifications Tray* doesn't display by default, select in the top right-hand corner of the form.

**3.** To add your comment, select **Hew** at the top of the **Notifications Tray**.

The Add Comment dialog box will display and the message "Click on cells above to link them to the comment. Click on the cell again to un-link it" will display.

🔍 Add Comme	ent
i Click o	on cells in the form to link them to the comment. Click the cell again to un-link it
Reason: * Additional Information:	Please Select a Reason
Cancel	4000 characters remaining Private Conversation Save

4. Select the cell(s) to be linked to the comment you are adding.

The selected cell(s) will now be highlighted in red.

- 5. Select in the **Reason** field that displays and select the reason you are linking the cell from the drop-down list. The available categories are **Unexpected results**, **Zero results/blanks**, **Internal validation**, and **General comments**. Each category then has several options that can be selected from.
- 6. Enter an explanatory comment in the **Additional Information** field.
- 7. To mark the conversation as private so Health and Aged Care can't see it, select the **Private Conversation** check box.
- 8. To save the comment, select Save

Once your HCP report is submitted to Health and Aged Care for processing, Health and Aged Care will be able to see the cells you have linked to the comment by selecting .

### **View Completed Comments and Conversations**

When a comment or conversation is marked as complete in your HCP form, it disappears. If required though, you can view those completed comments/conversations and undo the completion action if you wish to bring them back into view permanently.

The following procedure is used to view a completed comment/conversation in your HCP form in the Data Portal.

- 1. Ensure your HCP form is displayed.
- 2. Navigate to the **Notifications Tray**.

Uf the *Notifications* Tray doesn't display by default, select in the top right-hand corner of the form.

3. To view all "completed" comments, select in the **Notifications Tray** and select **Show Completed Comments**.

Any comments that have previously been marked as complete will now be visible, in the *Notifications Tray*, in green.



The comment/conversation can now be read as needed.

4. If the comment/conversation needs to be made permanently visible again, in the **Notifications Tray**, select **9**.

The selected comment/conversation has now been returned to view in the Notifications Tray.

Only those comments you have previously been able to see will be returned when you select *Show completed comments* in the *Notifications Tray*. For example, if Health and Aged Care has not previously been involved a particular conversation conducted by your health service, they will not be able to retrieve these "completed" comments.

### Download your HCP Submission's Data Validation History

When working with your submissions in the Data Portal, there may be times when you wish to see a full history of all the data validation issues that were generated for a particular submission. As data validation issues are resolved in the Data Portal as part of the submission workflow process, they disappear from the HCP form, so it isn't easy for those interacting with the submission to see all the issues that have been raised.

Being able to download the data validation history for a submission in the Data Portal allows any Data Portal users with the applicable access to be able to see what kind of data validation issues were encountered when working with the submission and how many of these issues were generated. It also allows you to see exactly how each issue was resolved and by whom.

The following procedure is used to download the data validation history report for your HCP submission.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the reports your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

HCP   5 March 2024 Reporting Round	Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024	
Due in 7 Days     Submission Ready for Final Approval     Data Sharing		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
		TIS PR Reporting Round

2. To open the HCP Data Asset Details screen, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting Dashboard, select • and then select **Open Data Asset**.

## HCP reporting in the Health Data Portal Validation History

#### The Data Asset Details screen will display.

☆ New ▼ Manage ▼ R	eports 🚔 Reporting Residuard	ING ENVIRONMENT	0
INDIGENOUS HEALTH - HCP 05/Mar/2024 to 12/Mar/2024	ALBURY WODONGA ABORIGINAL HEA	ALTH SERVICE INCORPORATED	OR Dopen HCP Form
Asset Details	Returned to Uploade	r Ready For Review Ready For Approval A	oproved Ready for Processing Processed
Title *	HCP - ALBURY WODONGA ABORIG	INAL HEALTH SERVICE INCORPORATED - 20240305	
Description			
			1.
Submitted by	Stuart Dunn		
Organisation	ALBURY WODONGA ABORIGINAL H	HEALTH SERVICE INCORPORATED	
Date Submitted	25/Mar/2024	Revision Due Date 27/Mar/2024	
Folder *	Folder *	Indigenous Health	~
receives the submission)	Sub-Folder	HCP	~
	Additional info		
Reporting Round	Reporting Period	05/Mar/2024 to 12/Mar/2024	~
	Data Period	01/Jul/2023 to 04/Mar/2024	
Data Period	Start:	End:	
Purge Date			

- 3. To download the data validation history report for your submission, scroll down to the **Files** section of the screen and select **i** in the **Action** column.
- **4.** From the Download tray  $\stackrel{\text{de}}{\longrightarrow}$  that now displays in the top right-hand side of your browser, select the spreadsheet that has just been downloaded.

The Data Validation History report will now open in Microsoft Excel.

A	в	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J	к	L	M	N	0	P	Q	R	S	т	U	v	w	x	Y	Z
******	Y	Internal v	NKPI01An	For Row: I	For Row: I	Number of	f babies; <u< th=""><th>ul&gt;<li>With</li></th><th>birth weig</th><th>ht recorde</th><th>ed (all live</th><th>births) (Va</th><th>lue=35)<th>i≫/ul&gt; sha</th><th>ould not be</th><th>e more that</th><th>n <ul><li>T</li></ul></th><th>otal babie</th><th>s born (Val</th><th>ue=34)<th>≪/ul&gt;Plea</th><th>ise amend</th><th>your data c</th><th>r provide a</th><th>comment.</th></th></th></u<>	ul> <li>With</li>	birth weig	ht recorde	ed (all live	births) (Va	lue=35) <th>i≫/ul&gt; sha</th> <th>ould not be</th> <th>e more that</th> <th>n <ul><li>T</li></ul></th> <th>otal babie</th> <th>s born (Val</th> <th>ue=34)<th>≪/ul&gt;Plea</th><th>ise amend</th><th>your data c</th><th>r provide a</th><th>comment.</th></th>	i≫/ul> sha	ould not be	e more that	n <ul><li>T</li></ul>	otal babie	s born (Val	ue=34) <th>≪/ul&gt;Plea</th> <th>ise amend</th> <th>your data c</th> <th>r provide a</th> <th>comment.</th>	≪/ul>Plea	ise amend	your data c	r provide a	comment.
******	Y	Internal v	NKPIData5	All fields	All fields	are require	ed Ple	ase ameno	l your data	or provide	e a comme	ent.													

The Data Validation History report displays the following information:

- **Created** The date the data validation issue was generated (column needs to be expanded for the date to be seen).
- **Error Resolved** Whether or not the data validation issue has been resolved by you either amending the values associated with issue or responding to the issue.
- Validation Type Lists the type of validation issue examples are Internal validation and Time trend variation.
- Page The indicators the data validation issues appeared in.
- **Original Message** The data validation flag that first displayed when the issue was generated.
- Final message The data validation flag that displayed when the issue was resolved.
- Who responded Where a response was added to a data validation flag, this column will list who entered the response.
- **Comment Reason** The reason selected from the drop-down list when the response was added.
- Comment Text The content of the response added by the user.
- 5. Use/save the data validation history report in Microsoft Excel as required.

### **Print or PDF your HCP Form**

There may be times when you need to print or PDF your HCP form from within your submission in the Data Portal. For example, your CEO may need to approve your health service's data but may not have access to the Data Portal to be able to do so online. As an alternative, you may choose to print out the form or PDF it and email it, so your CEO can review it in hard copy.

The following procedure is used to print/PDF your HCP form from the Data Portal.

1. Ensure you have logged in to the Data Portal and the Data Portal home screen is displayed with the Reporting Dashboard open.

A list of the submissions your health service is expected to submit as part of the current reporting round will display.

CP 5 March 2024 Reporting Round	Start Date: 02/Apr/2024 End Date: 04/Oct/2024	
Due in 7 Days     Submission Ready for Final Approval     Data Sharing		Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Open Start Date: 30/Jan/2024 End Date: 05/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with Aboriginal Health and Medical Research Council of NSW (AH&MRC) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	Activity Work Plan Reporting Ro Status: Pending Start Date: 30/Apr/2024 End Date: 30/Jun/2024
Do you agree to share your finalised processed HCP data (includes current and previous reporting periods) with National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO) for the purpose of policy development, research and summary feedback and support to organisations?	• Yes No	TIS PR Reporting Round Status: Closed Start Date: 15/Nov/2023 End Date: 31/Dec/2023
		TIS PR Reporting Round

2. To print your HCP form, hover your mouse pointer to the right of the HCP reporting round text in the Reporting Dashboard and select <a>.</a>

The HCP form will display with the Print button available in the top right-hand corner of the form.

		TRAINI	
Australian Government Department of Health and Aged Care		DATA POR	RTAL
☆ New ▼ Manage ▼	Reports	🛱 Reporting Dashboard	0
Indigenous Health - HCP 05/Mar/2024 to 12/Mar/2024	ALBURY WO	odonga aboriginal heal LBURY WODONGA A	LTH SERVICE INCORPORATED ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE INCO
Submission Data			
Health Care Provider De	etails		
Please complete all details including p includes:	provider numb	er and name for all Health Care	e Providers who provided services during the period. Include only those who had a Medicare provider number. This
general practitioners (GPs)			
<ul> <li>participating midwives</li> </ul>			
participating nurse practitioners			

#### To print your HCP form, select 🖶. 3.

The Print dialog box will display, showing a preview of the form, with any comments now showing in the section of the form they relate to.

TRAINING ENVIRONMENT   with the with the first line   with the first line <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>1</th> <th></th> <th></th>				1		
Built     Image:     Image: <th>TRAINING ENVIRO Provider Number Last Name First Name</th> <th>NMENT Salaried</th> <th>Bulk Select</th> <th></th> <th>Print</th> <th>3 pages</th>	TRAINING ENVIRO Provider Number Last Name First Name	NMENT Salaried	Bulk Select		Print	3 pages
<pre>set is is</pre>	2388613W Annahrong Brian	● Yes 🔾 No	x		Destination	Save as PDF 🔹
<pre>kttl: Nuture network in No x kttl: Nuture Network in Network in No x kttl: Nuture Network in Netwo</pre>	Du Mai	● Yes 🔿 No	x		Pages	
ie ie     ie	Atwater Holly	● Yes 🔿 No	x		- ages	All
Negative     inter     inter         Buk Update:   inter     Other   inter them former thand and (Kolocobi Vaci)	88613C Shaw Noah	● Yes 🔿 No	x		Layout	Portrait 💌
And we determine the second of the second	513D Nagarkar Mohinder	● Yes 🔿 No	x			
Bit Dur     Burk Update:     Burk update:     Our   Curper pointer schart für Higt pointer schart für Stander in samed.   Imate Schart Dur (Description in Stander in Stander)   Our (Description in Schart für Stander in Stander)   Imate Schart Dur (Description in Stander in Stander)   Imate Schart Dur (Description in Stander in Stander)   Imate Schart Dur (Description in Stander)	Jain Anantha	● Yes 🔾 No	x		More settings	~
Buk Update: Cher Core protects due Mar Bit protects named: A met dem (Mar/MCOORAAMORIANA IEA/IN SERVICE NOOPOORTD) (MAR/MSOI IEA/IN Cher Compare A met dem (Mar/MCOORAAMORIANA IEA/IN SERVICE NOOPOORTD) (MAR/MSOI IEA/IN A met dem (Mar/MSOI IEA/IN) (MA	Bannerman Dana	e Yes ○ No	x			
Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under is annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under is annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under is annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under is annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under is annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under is annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under is annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under its annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under its annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under its annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under its fall fall fall for annel.         Image: Comparison dask fall fall provider under its fall fall fall fall fall fall fall fal		Bulk U	pdate:			
Image: Construction of the state of the state is a stream.       Image: Construction of the state of the stream of th	Reflections					
UBer         Car projektion shows that the type system readers is samed.         A Start Shows (Department framed Bull) (SUMORDER 1G3)         Data is samed         Data is samed in the projection of the provide item of the pro	A		-			
Event Devi (Department Faund 20d) (80A0283 132     Comparison (Comparison	Can you please check that this provider number is o	omed.				
1 Data kowat Data kowat 4 Buetowat 4 Buetowat 2 Data kowat 4 Buetowat 4 Buetowat 2 Data kowat 4 Buetowat 1 Data kowat 4 Buetowat 1 Data kowat 4 Buetowat 1 Data kowat 1 Da	Shart Dunn   Departmental Internal Staff   06/Mar/202	4 13 52				
a Bandbarn (ALBARY INCONCILANDARISAL HEALY) ISBNACID (INDALADISH HIN)       Curvelan       2       a Bandbarn (Duptmental Name Barl (ISBNaCIDH HIS)	1 Data is correct					
Complete 2 Send Daws (Department) biend (304) (20Mx/2021 1122	Stuart Duns (ALBURY WODONGA ADORIGNAL	HEALTH SERVICE INCORPORATED   05/Mar/2024 14:00				
Beef Dees   Department Internal Fail   ISDAndSIGK 1122	2 Complete					
	Stuart Dunn   Departmental Internal Staff   25Mart	2024 11:22				

4. To continue, select the printer you wish to use.

If you wish to save the HCP form rather than print it, so you can share it with colleagues or file it, select  $\square$  in the Print dialog box, select *Save as PDF* and then save the form in the desired location.

5. To print the form, select Print

The form will now be printed at the selected printer.